House of the ages

Touring the past at the Neill-Cochran House Museum
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The grand, six-columned manor at 2310 San Gabriel St. seems to have been destined to serve many masters. Built in 1855, the house was leased in 1856 for use as a temporary home for what was then called the State Asylum for the Blind (renamed the Texas School for the Blind and Visually Impaired). Gen. George Custer arranged for the house to be used at the end of the Civil War as a hospital for federal troops. It was later home to two prominent Austin families, the Neills and the Cochrans.

The building had already earned its place in history when it was bought in 1958 by the National Society of the Colonial Dames of America in the State of Texas. Today it is called the Neill-Cochran House Museum.

The Greek Revival style house was designed by Abner Cook, who was known as the most important master builder in Texas during the antebellum period. A master builder performed the duties of architect, contractor and engineer, and Greek Revival buildings were Cook's specialty. The style imitates elements of ancient Greek temple design with features such as columns, heavy cornices and a symmetrical shape.

Cook's distinct imprint can be found throughout Austin. In addition to the Neill-Cochran House, he designed and built the Governor's Mansion, the Pease Mansion (also known as Woodlawn) and the Swisher-Scott House on Sweetbrush Drive.

Around the same time Cook was working on the Governor's Mansion, Washington Hill of Columbus commissioned him to build a residence on what is now San Gabriel Street, in the busy neighborhood west of the University of Texas campus. It is believed that Hill and his wife never lived there.

"Legend is that Mrs. Hill was afraid to stay here by herself," says Cecille Marcato, administrator of the Neill-Cochran House Museum. Back then, the house was in a rural area on the outskirts of town, and Washington Hill was often away.

Another belief is that the Hills were overextended financially and couldn't afford to stay in their new home. So, early in its life, the 2,500-square-foot mansion — with its 18-inch thick walls clad in local limestone, its approximately 26-foot-tall Doric columns, its grand spaces (13-foot ceilings downstairs and 11-foot ceilings upstairs) — became a rental.

In 1876, many years after its use as a hospital during Reconstruction, the house was finally put to its original purpose, as a family home. Col. Andrew Neill, an attorney and former Confederate colonel, and his second wife, Jennie Chapman, bought the house and lived there with their children.

In 1893, the Neills rented the house to Judge Thomas Beauford Cochran, who was at one time the city attorney of Austin. He purchased it in 1895. Cochran died in 1913, but the Cochran family continued to own and live in the house until it was purchased by the Colonial Dames.

The antique furnishings, artwork and accessories that decorate the house were donated from the private collections of the Colonial Dames. Pieces date from 1700-1900 and are arranged in rooms named according to their period of fashion: Rococo Revival, Empire, Colonial and Victorian-era styles.

Step over the threshold, across the creaky oak and pine floorboards and into the elegant rooms for a glimpse into Austin's past.
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